

LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT

MINUTES OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE Tuesday, 22 March 2011 at 7.00 pm

PRESENT: John Mann (Chair) and Councillors Beck, Colwill and Gladbaum

Apologies were received from: Angela Ruotolo (Independent Member, Vice Chair)

1. Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests

None made.

2. Minutes of the previous meeting

RESOLVED:-

that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 3 November 2010 be approved as an accurate record of the meeting.

3. Matters arising

None.

4. Localism Bill - proposed changes to the Standards Regime

The Borough Solicitor's report detailed the provisions of the Localism Bill concerning Standards in Local Authorities, the likely changes and the implications for Brent. Members recalled that at the Networking Event held in January earlier in the year they were advised of the new arrangements as set out in the draft Bill which would see the end of the current standards regime including Standards for England. Local Authorities would be left with an obligation to promote and maintain high standards in the absence of a prescriptive framework. Registers of Interest would still be maintained and criminal sanctions would apply to breaches where appropriate. Individual local authorities could take a view on whether to have a code of conduct, its content and remit and decide how to persuade members to comply. London Councils were in the process of considering a London wide code and a report would be submitted once this had been drafted. It was noted that any new arrangements would need to be adopted by Full Council.

In discussion, members felt that the introduction of a more robust and transparent register of interests would be beneficial and could be more efficient. It was also felt that the role of independent members would be critical to any new arrangements. It was felt that a London based code would be useful but questioned how consensus would be achieved and the absence of sanctions. The Borough Solicitor's representative, Kathy Robinson (Legal and Procurement), drew attention to the role

of training and Monitoring Officer Advice Notes as means of maintaining standards and members were advised that some local authorities were considering the legality of suspending allowances as a sanction. The committee then went on to consider in turn the fundamental issues as set out in the report and agreed on the need for the council to have a code of conduct, based on the current Brent code or on the pan London draft code when available. Members also agreed on the need to continue with the Standards Committee as a means of investigating complaints about conduct possibly with the Monitoring Officer filtering out complaints seen to be vexatious or trivial. On the composition of the committee members agreed that the presence of independent members helped to reinforce public credibility.

Some concern was expressed that under the new arrangements there would be no obligation on a member accused of misconduct to engage with the process and that any findings would be downgraded. However, it was noted that should a member under investigation fail to take part, conclusions would be drawn, making the exercise worthwhile.

RESOLVED:-

- (i) that the report from the Borough Solicitor on the proposed changes to the standards regime be noted;
- (ii) that consideration be given to the standards regime in Brent being based on the current Brent Members Code of Conduct taking into account any pan London code once available;
- (iii) that the existing role of independent members on the Standards Committee should continue.

5. Financial and Procedural Rules Governing the Mayor's Charity Appeal

The Mayor's Office and Member Development Manager introduced the report which set out a new set of financial and procedural rules for governing the Mayor's Charity Appeal. The previous rules were agreed in 2005 and were now felt to be in need of review to ensure effectiveness and transparency. She outlined the proposed changes which allowed for a consistent approach to ensuring the appropriateness of the charities chosen, approved by the Charity Commission and benefiting the people of Brent. The second change was to put in place a robust process for dealing with charities which got into financial difficulty particularly relevant in the current economic climate.

Members discussed the rules that would govern the selection of charities and the extent to which choice should be restricted. It was agreed that a balance was required and that to restrict choice to Brent based charities would be too limiting. Additionally, consideration was also given to whether chosen charities must exclusively benefit inhabitants of Brent however it was recognised that this would be difficult to maintain and would possibly exclude the majority of charities. Members heard that the Director of Finance and Corporate Services would carry out checks on charities' financial viability.

It was agreed that efforts should be made to ensure that any donations were made as tax efficiently as possible and to using the Charities Aid Foundation. The committee welcomed the new regulations.

RESOLVED:

- that the new rules relating to the financial and procedural management of the Mayor's Charity Appeal as set out in appendix 2 of the report from the Mayor's Office and Member Development Manager be noted;
- (ii) that consideration be given to the improving the efficiency of donations to the Mayor's Charities if possible using the Charities Aid Foundation.

6. Annual Review of the Member Development Programme May 2010 - April 2011

The Mayor's Office and Member Development Manager, Elly Cook, outlined the activities undertaken by members since May 2010 including the induction programme following the elections in May 2010. Her report also included an analysis of the feedback from members, identified constraints on the programme and referred to the future of the programme and to additional training opportunities including e-learning. Elly Cook was pleased to report on the main achievement namely the award of the London Council's Member Development Charter for member development excellence in recognition of work over the past three years. On the induction programme, the majority of feedback was positive. Personal development interviews had taken place and had informed the programme. She was pleased to report that no penalties had had to be imposed on members due to late cancellations. The Member Development Steering Group was strong and met quarterly. The committee noted that discussions were taking place with LB Harrow on the possibility of sharing training to reduce costs. Membership of the London Development Network would also have budgetary savings.

Members stated that they had enjoyed the courses they had attended and congratulated officers on the award of the Charter.

RESOLVED:

that the report be noted.

7. Annual Work Programme 2011/12

Kathy Robinson (Legal and Procurement) introduced the draft work programme which had been amended to reflect the changes to standards arrangements outlined in the Localism Bill referred to earlier, with a reduced number of meetings, the next ordinary meeting not expected until September 2011. The annual networking event which was well received was expected to have an expanded catchment of boroughs. Meetings would be convened to consider the outstanding complaint against two members.

RESOLVED:

that the work programme for 2011/12 be agreed.

8. Sub-Committee membership changes

None.

9. **Date of Next Meeting**

The date of next meeting will be agreed by the Full Council in May 2011.

10. Any Other Urgent Business

None.

11. Vote of thanks

As this was the last meeting of the municipal year, the Chair, John Mann, thanked members and officers for their services and they in turn, thanked him for his contribution over the year.

The meeting closed at 8.15 pm

JOHN MANN Chair